TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE

Board of Selectmen Agenda
February 11, 2021 @ 6:00 PM
VIRTUAL MEETING VIA ZOOM (Instructions)

Ways to join this webinar

Join by computer or mobile device and click on_https://zoom.us/j/96754973498
or go to ZOOM and enter the webinar ID: 967 5497 3498

By phone 1(929) 205 6099 US

. Call to Order.

. Approve the January 28, 2021 selectmen meeting minutes.

. Public Forum (This is an opportunity for anyone who wants to address
the Board of Selectmen with any issue that is not on the agenda.)

. Consider the renewal liquor license and special amusement permit submitted by
Rhumb Line Resort, 41 Turbats Creek Road.

. Presentation of proposed ordinance revisions for June town meeting:

° Revisions to Animal Control Ordinance (regarding dogs on the beach)
. Revisions to Waterfront Ordinance

. Consider sidewalk removal at 52 Ocean Avenue.

. Discussion of Short-Term Rental Ordinance.

. Discussion of leasing electric vehicles through Hyundai municipal lease program and
Efficiency Maine grant.

. Accept the donation of $1,000 from Atlantic Fire Association to the emergency fuel
fund.

10. Accept the donation of $400 from Church on the Cape to the emergency fuel fund.

11.Accept the donation of $300 from an anonymous donor to the Nurse’s general

account.



12. Accept the following donations to the Carol Cook Garden:
e $5 from Alison Riggieri
e $5 from Susan Streiff
e $5 from Tara Rubin
e $25 from Susan Cressey
e $75 from Ruth Fernandez
e $75 from Sarah Smith

13. Other Business.
14. Approve the February 11, 2021, Treasurer's Warrant.

15. Adjournment.



AGENDA ITEM
DIVIDER




Item 2

Town of Kennebunkport
Board of Selectmen Meeting VIA Zoom
January 28, 2021
6:00 PM

MINUTES

Selectmen attending via Zoom: Allen Daggett, Patrick Briggs, Sheila Matthews-Bull,
Edward Hutchins and D. Michael Weston.

Others attending via Zoom: Laurie Smith, Tracey O’'Roak, David Powell, Mike Claus,
Craig Sanford, Chris Simeoni, Jen Lord, John Everett, Breese Reagle, Eric Labelle, and
others.

1. Call to Order.

Selectman Daggett called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. He took roll call of
Selectmen present: Allen Daggett, Patrick Briggs, Sheila Matthews-Bull, Edward
Hutchins and D. Michael Weston.

2. Approve the January 14, 2021 and January 21, 2021 selectmen meeting
minutes.

Motion by Selectman Briggs, seconded by Selectman Weston, to approve the January
14, 2021 and January 21, 2021, selectmen meeting minutes.

Roll Call Vote on January 14, 2021 minutes: Briggs, Hutchins, Weston, and Daggett.
Selectman Matthews-Bull abstained as she was not at that meeting. Voted: 4-0.
Motion passed.

Roll Call Vote on January 21, 2021 minutes: Briggs, Hutchins, Weston, Matthews-
Bull and Daggett. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

3. Public Forum (This is an opportunity for anyone who wants to address
the Board of Selectmen with any issue that is not on the agenda.).

There were no comments.



Selectmen’s Meeting -2- January 28, 2021

4. Consider the following renewal liquor license and special amusement permits
submitted by:
¢ Hidden Pond, LLC located at 356 Goose Rocks Road
o The Kennebunkport Inn, LLC located at One Dock Square
e Lodge on the Cove, LLC located at 29 South Maine Street
e Ivy One, LLC d/b/a The Clubhouse at Cape Arundel Inn located at 8 Old
Fort Avenue
e Cape Arundel Inn, LLC located at 208 Ocean Avenue
¢ Yachtsman Hospitality, LLC located at 57 Ocean Avenue
e Tides Beach Club, LLC located at 930 Kings Highway
e The Boathouse at Kennebunkport, LLC located at 21 Ocean Avenue

Motion by Selectman Hutchins, seconded by Selectman Briggs to approve the renewal
liguor and special amusement licenses to the above establishments. Roll Call Vote:
Briggs, Hutchins, Weston, Matthews-Bull and Daggett. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

5. Consider a renewal liquor license submitted by Taylormade Hospitality d/b/a
Hurricane Restaurant located at 29 Dock Square.

Motion by Selectman Hutchins, seconded by Selectman Briggs to approve the renewal
liguor license for Taylormade Hospitality d/b/a Hurricane Restaurant. Roll Call Vote:
Briggs, Hutchins, Weston, Matthews-Bull and Daggett. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

6. Consider a renewal liquor license submitted by W & A, Inc. d/b/a Cape Pier
Chowder House located at 79 Pier Road.

Motion by Selectman Hutchins, seconded by Selectman Matthews-Bull, to approve the
renewal liquor license for W&A, Inc. d/b/a Cape Pier Chowder House. Roll Call Vote:
Briggs, Hutchins, Weston, and Matthews-Bull. Selectman Daggett abstained. Voted:
4-0. Motion passed.

7. Appointment of Town Clerk and Registrar of Voters.

Ms. Smith informed the board that after a thorough search, attracting a wide variety of
candidates, the Town Clerk position was offered to Jamie Mitchell. Jamie grew up in
Kennebunkport and is currently a Kennebunkport resident. She has worked for the last
17 years in the field of law as a Legal Assistant and Paralegal, most recently for the firm
Drummond and Drummond in Portland. She is very organized, adept at process
administration, and cares deeply about the Town of Kennebunkport. The Selectmen all
warmly welcomed Jamie. Motion by Selectman Briggs, seconded by Selectman
Hutchins to appoint Jamie Mitchell as Town Clerk and Registrar of Voters for a term to
expire in March 2021 (when the Town does annual appointments for town officials). Roll



Selectmen’s Meeting ~-3- January 28, 2021

Call Vote: Briggs, Hutchins, Weston, Matthews-Bull and Daggett. Voted: 5-0.
Motion passed.

8. Consider appointment to the Shellfish Conservation Committee.

Motion by Selectman Matthews-Bull, seconded by Selectman Hutchins to appoint
Kevin Philbrick to the Shellfish Conservation Committee for a term to expire in July of
2021 (when the Town does annual appointments for committees). Roll Call Vote:
Briggs, Hutchins, Weston, Matthews-Bull and Daggett. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

9. Annual Investment Presentation by Daniel Lay of H.M. Payson.

Ms. Smith introduced Daniel Lay of H.M. Payson. Attorney Lay then presented an
investment review, including the Kittredge and Picavet Trusts.

Motion by Selectman Hutchins, seconded by Selectman Matthew-Bull, to accept the
Annual Investment Report as presented. Roll Call Vote: Briggs, Hutchins, Weston,
Matthews-Bull and Daggett. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

10. Presentation of FY2020 audit by Hank Farrah of RKO.

Ms. Lord introduced Hank Farrah of Runyon Kersteen Ousellette. Mr. Farrah gave a
brief overview of the FY 20 audit. He indicated that it was a clean report, and he found
no material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.

Motion by Selectman Hutchins, seconded by Selectman Briggs, to accept the FY 20
Audit as presented. Roll Call Vote: Briggs, Hutchins, Weston, Matthews-Bull and
Daggett. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

11. Transfer to capital reserve fund in accordance with fund balance policy.

Ms. Lord explained that in accordance with our fund balance policy, each year the
Board of Selectmen review the fund balance after the audit presentation and transfer
any funds in excess of the 18% target balance to the capital reserve account. This year
the funds available for transfer are $10,555.

Motion by Selectman Weston, seconded by Selectman Hutchinson, to transfer $10,555
to the capital reserve account in accordance with the fund balance policy. Roll Call
Vote: Briggs, Hutchins, Matthews-Bull, Weston, Daggett. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.



Selectmen’s Meeting -4- January 28, 2021

12.Presentation of Community Conservation Project by Rachel Carson National
Wildlife Refuge.

Staff from Rachel Carson National Wildlife Refuge addressed the Board to present
details about a voluntary community conservation project in development called Rachel
Carson's Conservation Champions: Businesses for a Greener Future. The project,
which has been developed as part of the refuge's 50th year anniversary of being
renamed in honor of Rachel Carson, aims to form partnerships between the refuge and
the local business community and to inspire local business owners to implement
environmentally sustainable practices at their business within a 1-year timeframe.

13.Capital Budget Preliminary Review.

Ms. Smith advised that Department Directors will be presenting a five-year capital
improvement plan. Staff will be seeking feedback and guidance on priorities from the
Selectmen. She advised that priorities will need to be determined to create a balanced
budget. Each department presented their five-year capital improvement goals. Top
priorities for the Selectmen were the communications equipment for the Police and Fire
Departments as well as the Wastewater infrastructure.

14.Adopt the Goose Rocks Beach Parking Sticker Rules/Regulations.

Ms. Smith stated that staff is not recommending any changes to the Beach Parking
sticker fees. Current fees are:

o Resident seasonal $5.00

o Nonresident daily $25.00

o Nonresident weekly $100.00

o Nonresident seasonal $200.00

Motion by Selectman Hutchins, seconded by Selectman Briggs, to adopt the Beach
Sticker Fees for 2021 as stated above. Roll Call Vote: Briggs, Hutchins, Matthews-
Bull, Weston, and Daggett. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

15. Accept the following donations to the Carol Cook Garden:

e $5 from Andrea Languirand
¢ $5 from Amanda & Werner Gilliam
e $5 from Laurie Kelly

Motion by Selectman Hutchins, seconded by Selectman Matthews-Bull, to accept the
above donations to the Carol Cook Garden. Roll Call Vote: Briggs, Hutchins,
Matthews-Bull, Weston, and Daggett. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.



Selectmen’s Meeting -5- January 28, 2021

16. Accept the following donations from the Holiday Trail of Lights:

e $50 to the Nurse’s general account
e $425 to the Emergency Fuel Fund
e $515 to the Parks & Rec Scholarship Fund

Motion by Selectman Hutchins, seconded by Selectman Matthews-Bull, to accept the
above donations from the Holiday Trail of Lights. Roll Call Vote: Briggs, Hutchins,
Matthews-Bull, Weston, and Daggett. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

17.0ther Business.

Ms. Smith advised that there is another donation to accept in the amount of $2,000 from
the Kennebunkport Resident’s Association to the Nurse’s general account.

Motion by Selectman Briggs, seconded by Selectman Hutchins, to accept the $2,000
donation from the KRA to the Nurse’s general account. Roll Call Vote: Briggs,
Hutchins, Matthews-Bull, Weston, and Daggett. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

Ms. Smith brought forward a Waiver of Rights regarding the project to repair the east
and west jetties. Discussion ensued regarding the timeline for the project and whether
to sign the waiver.

Motion by Selectman Weston, seconded by Selectman Briggs to give Laurie Smith
authority to negotiate the construction contract for the jetty repair. Roll Call Vote:
Briggs, Hutchins, Matthews-Bull, Weston, and Daggett. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

Ms.Smith updated the Board on a program that Rowe Westbrook brought to the Town.
Hyundai is offering a rebate on two electric vehicles: the Kona and the loniq. The Town
could lease these vehicles for $0 for three years with rebates from Efficiency Maine and
Hyundai. The lease would allow for 10,000 miles per year. Rowe Westbrook brought a
car to town hall for staff to see. Ms. Smith suggested vehicles for the Nurse’s Office and
the Planning Department. The Selectmen were all on board with moving forward with
this offer.

18. Approve the January 28, 2021, Treasurer’s Warrant.

Motion by Selectman Briggs, seconded by Selectman Hutchins to approve the January
28, 2021 Treasurer's Warrant. Roll Call Vote: Briggs, Hutchins, Matthews-Bull,
Weston, and Daggett. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.



Selectmen’s Meeting -6- January 28, 2021

19. Adjournment.

Motion by Selectman Hutchins, seconded by Selectman Matthews-Bull, to
adjourn. Roll Call Vote: Briggs, Hutchins, Matthews-Bull, Weston, and Daggett.
Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

The meeting adjourned at 8:41 PM.

Submitted by,
Tracey O’'Roak
Administrative Assistant



AGENDA ITEM
DIVIDER




Item 4

STATE OF MAINE
DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE AND FINANCIAL SERVICES
BUREAU OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES AND LOTTERY OPERATIONS
DIVISION OF LIQUOR LICENSING AND ENFORCEMENT

Division Use Only

License No:
Class: By:
Deposit Date:

Application for an On-Premises License

All Questions Must Be Answered Completely. Please print legibly. Amt. Deposited:

Payment Type:
OK with SOS: Yesd No O

SectionI:  Licensee/Applicant(s) Information;
Type of License and Status

_Legal Business Entity Applicant Name (corporation, LLC): | Business Name (D/B/A):
Rhumb Line Lesort
Individual or Sole Proprietor Applicant Name(s): Physical Location:
Sheila Ma Hhews-Byll H | Torkats Creek Fol Hagh
Individual or Sole Proprietor Applicant Name(s): Mailing address, if dizr/ent:' _
Kennelunty/ t ME Doyl
Mailjng address, if different 70m DBA address: Email Address: / ‘
59 Langs Lol an Codovakper F MG pdrly She la@rhumb it resart .Com]
Telephone # Fax #: J Business Telephone # Fax #: :
oNT-967-5451 207-947-4418
Federal Tax Identification Number: Maine Seller Certificate # or Sales Tax #:
T
Ol-04 11590 “0bS
Retail Beverage Alcohol Dealers Permit: Website address:
WwWW. Chumblineresor )L lom
1. New license or renewal of existing license? 0 New Expected Start date:

E/ Renewal Expiration Date: J; f { { 2021

2. The dollar amount of gross income for the licensure period that will end on the expiration date above:

, b 290 = o
Food: !4; 7 ; DDQ Beer, Wine or Spirits: "tg ¢ ") Guest Rooms: _5—] Cf \ 000

3. Please indicate the type of alcoholic beverage to be sold: (check all that apply)

E/Malt Liquor (beer) & Wine D/Spirits

On Premise Application, Rev. 3/2020 Page 1 of 11



TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE

- INCORPORATED 1653-
MAINE’S FINEST RESORT

APPLICATION

SPECIAL AMUSEMENT PERMIT FOR
DANCING AND ENTERTAINMENT,

Name of Applicant \ hé’l |r’t M ‘H’hpu?% _%L ) ]

Residence Address 59 Lam§ Es r& Ef)) Kﬂ nne. }Q)nl’ /OJ?/('\

Home Telephone Number 7)) - /07 - 3bAR

Name of Business Rhomb Ling Ké So F%“

Business Address Y| Turlbats F reely Qr’)&ﬁ/ kb%//'

Type of Business \"% ;}’6 / Seas mca/ e

Business Telephone Number cQO /- 9&’ /- [_L/f‘?

Nature of Special. Amusement M [N ﬁ(’) f‘}’lf g
Weddl MG s

Has your liquor and or amusement license ever been denied or revoked?
Yes __ No __\Z

If yes, describe circumstances specifically. (Attach additional page if necessary)

D‘fﬂ%-

. Permit Fee: $ 50.00 (payable to the Town of Kennebunkport)
. By making application for this permit and signing this application form, |
acknowledge that | am familiar with the rules and regulations governing this

permit. >
L2l

[\ ==

. applicant

P.O. Box 566, 6 Elm Street, Kennebunkport, Maine 04046 » Tel: (207) 967-4243 Fax: (207) 967-8470



AGENDA ITEM
DIVIDER




Item 5

Adopted at the Annual Town Meeting on June 9, 2015
Amended November 3, 2015

ANIMAL CONTROL ORDINANCE

Section A: Purpose

The purpose of this ordinance is to require that all animals in the Town of
Kennebunkport be kept under the control of their owner or keeper at all times so that
they will not injure persons or other animals, damage property or create a public safety
threat.

The provisions of this ordinance that apply to the owner of an animal apply equally to
any person keeping, or having control, custody or possession of that animal.

Section B: Definitions

1.

2.

ANIMAL: Every living, sentient creature not a human being.

ANIMAL CONTROL: Control of dogs, cats and domesticated or undomesticated
animals.

ANIMAL CONTROL OFFICER: Any person appointed by the Town of
Kennebunkport to enforce animal control laws.

ANIMAL SHELTER: A facility that includes a physical structure that provides
temporary shelter to stray, abandoned, abused or owner-surrendered animals.

AT LARGE: Off the premises of the owner, unleashed and not under the Voice
and Sight control of a responsible party.

BEACH: The beaches within the Town of Kennebunkport commonly referred to
as Goose Rocks Beach, Colony Beach, and Cleaves Cove.

DOG: Any of large and varied groups of domesticated animals in the canine
family.

LEASH: Hand held device, 15 feet or less in length, which can be used to restrain
a dog.

LIMITED DOG ACCESS AREA: Any beach area on Goose Rocks Beach, Colony
Beach or Cleaves Cove, that is designated by the Board of Selectmen or
designee for special protection of piping plovers or other endangered species
based upon scientific and historical data, where dogs may be either prohibited
entirely or permitted only if on-leash based on time of day and/or date, as



provided herein or pursuant to rules adopted hereunder. This designation may be
seasonal or permanent.

10.NESTING AREA: Any beach area on Goose Rocks Beach, Colony Beach or
Cleaves Cove, that has been roped off, fenced off or otherwise demarcated or
posted by governmental officials or their agents to protect the nesting site of a
piping plover or of any other endangered species protected under federal or state
law.

11.OWNER: Owner or any person of persons, firm, association or corporation
owning, keeping or harboring an animal or any person having custody,
possession, or control of an animal.

12.RESPONSIBLE PARTY: Any person who has custody, possession or control of a
dog, whether or not that person is the Owner.

13.VOICE AND SIGHT CONTROL: “Voice Control” means that the dog returns
immediately to and remains by the side of the responsible party in response to the
responsible party's verbal command. “Sight Control” means that the dog is always
within sight of the responsible party and the dog is capable of complying with
Voice Control. If a dog approaches or remains within 10 feet of any person other
than the responsible party, that dog is not under voice control and is in violation of
this Ordinance unless such person has communicated to the responsible party by
spoken word or gesture that such person consents to the presence of the dog. A
dog barking repeatedly is not considered under Voice and Sight Control.

Section C: Requirements for Control of Animals

1. AT LARGE DOGS: It is unlawful for any dog, licensed or unlicensed, to be at
large within the Town of Kennebunkport, except when used for hunting. Dogs
shall be considered at large unless leashed or under Voice and Sight Control of a
responsible party. A responsible party shall maintain control of their dog(s) at all
times, not allow the dog(s) to charge, chase or display aggression towards any
person, or disturb or harass any person, other dogs or wildlife. A responsible
party shall have a leash in his/her possession for any dog that is off leash. The
owner of any dog found at large or otherwise in violation of this section will be
subject to the civil penalties provided in the Ordinance and/or Maine State Law,
Title 7, Section 3911.

2. DOGS LEASHED: A leash shall be used to restrain a dog: (a) if the dog fails to
respond to voice commands when off the premises of the owner, (b) when a dog
is walking with a responsible party on roads and sidewalks in the Town of
Kennebunkport, or (c) if the responsible party is ordered by the Animal Control
Officer or a law enforcement officer to leash the dog. The owner of any dog
found in violation of this section will be subject to the civil penalties provided in the
Ordinance.



IMPOUNDMENT OR RETURN OF AT LARGE DOGS: All dogs found at large in
violation of this Ordinance or Title 7, M.R.S.A., Section 3911 may be impounded
at the animal shelter or returned to the owner, at the discretion of the Animal
Control Officer or law enforcement officer.

LICENSES: No dog shall be kept within the limits of the Town of Kennebunkport
unless such dog is licensed by the owner in accordance with Maine State Law.

RABIES TAGS: Rabies tags obtained from a veterinarian for immunization
against rabies must be securely attached to the dog’s collar and must be worn by
the dog for which the tag was issued except when the dog is hunting, in training or
in an exhibition or on the premises of the owner.

CONTROL OF ANIMAL WASTE: An owner or responsible party must remove
and dispose of any feces left by his/her animal on any sidewalk, street, beach,
public property or private property (other than the property of the owner of the
animal or of a person who has consented to the presence of the animal on his or
her property). Deposit of feces left off property of the owner shall be placed in an
appropriate litter receptacle

Section D: Requirements for Dogs on Beaches

1.

AUTHORITY: The Board of Selectmen shall have the authority to adopt specific
rules governing dogs on Goose Rocks Beach, Colony Beach and Cleaves Cove
that are more restrictive than the provisions of Section C or Section D(2) of this
Ordinance. For example, the Board of Selectmen or designee may designate
Limited Dog Access Areas on these beaches for special protection for piping
plovers or other endangered species based upon scientific and historical data
consistent with state and federal laws governing endangered species. For
specific rules governing dogs on Goose Rocks Beach, the Board of Selectmen
shall have the authority to adopt such rules after consultation with the Goose
Rocks Beach Advisory Committee, in accordance with Section IV.D of the Beach
Use Ordinance for Goose Rocks Beach.

DOG RESTRICTIONS ON BEACHES: The following restrictions apply to dogs
on the following beaches located within the Town of Kennebunkport: Goose
Rocks Beach, Colony Beach and Cleaves Cove.

a. An owner or responsible party shall always be required to leash their dog on
any of the applicable beaches referenced above when directed to do so by a
law enforcement officer or Animal Control officer.

b. Pet waste must be picked up immediately and disposed of properly in an
appropriate litter receptacle.



Feqewement— doqs may be on the beach at any time of dav except as set forth
in subsection (d) below but must be on leash at all times.

stay—as—fa#awaywas—pes&ble—#em—the—NesnngﬂAFea—From June 15 throuqh
Labor Day. dogs are not permitted on the beach from 9:00 AM to 5:00 PM.

This provision does not apply to use of a service dog by a person with a
disability when the doq is required to perform work or tasks directly related to
the person’s disability.

Seehens—Dez)éd-)—(e}ef—ef)-mw—Fequ#e—e#henwse- From September 16

through March 31, if under voice and sight control, dogs may be off leash on
the beach, except for the hours of 12:00 PM to 6:00 PM when they must
remain on leash, and except to the extent the rules in Section D(2)(a) above
may require otherwise.

kf._ At any time that a dog is permitted to be on the beach, the dog must be kept
at least 200 feet away from a Nesting Area.




Section E: Rulemaking Authority governing Other Public Resources

Notwithstanding the general rules found in Section C herein, the Board of Selectmen
shall have the authority to adopt specific rules governing dogs on other publicly owned
or operated lands located within the Town of Kennebunkport, such as public parks.

Section F: Penalties

1. Any person who violates any provision of this Ordinance shall be subject to civil
penalties for each violation, as follows:

First violation: not less than $50.00 and not more than $100.00, plus costs
and reasonable attorneys’ fees.

Second violation: not less than $100.00 and not more than $250.00, plus
costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees.

Third and subsequent violations: not less than $250.00 and not more than
$500.00, plus costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees.

2. Notwithstanding multiple violations of this Ordinance, any person who violates
Section C(4) (Licenses), or Section C(5) (Rabies Tags) of this Ordinance shall be
subject to a civil penalty of not more than $100.00 for each offense, consistent
with 7 M.R.S.A. §§3918, 3924.

3. All civil penalties collected pursuant to this Ordinance shall be recovered to the
use of the Town of Kennebunkport and deposited in the separate account
required by 7 M.R.S.A. Section 3945.

4. A person issued a civil violation citation for violating this Ordinance may elect to
pay the minimum penalty specified above for each violation alleged in the
citation, in lieu of appearing in court to answer the citation. Such payment must
be received at the Office of the Town Clerk in the amount specified by the Animal
Control Officer by the seventh day prior to the court appearance date specified in
the citation. Upon receipt of such payment by the Clerk, the Animal Control
Officer or law enforcement officer shall cause the citation to be dismissed.
However, the violations alleged in the citation shall be deemed admitted for
purposes of assessing any future penalties under this section.

5. Any civil penalty collected for a violation of this Ordinance shall not preclude the
Town from imposing or collecting a fine or penalty for a violation of the Barking
Dog Ordinance (adopted March 10, 1984).



Section G: Severability Clause

If any part of this Ordinance shall be held invalid, such part shall be deemed severable
and the invalidity thereof shall not affect the remaining parts of this ordinance.

Barking Dog Ordinance

Adopted at the Annual Town Meeting on March 10, 1984
Amended June 18, 2005

The owner of a dog or dogs, or the person having control over a dog or dogs,
which disturb the peace of any person by frequently and habitually barking,
howling, or creating other noise shall be punished, on the first offense, by a fine
of not more than $50.00. The second offense within a six month period shall be
punished by a fine of not more than $100.00. The third offense within a one year
period shall be punished by a fine of not more than $500.00 and the Town may
ask the Court to order that such dog or dogs be forthwith removed from Town.
All costs incurred by the Town as a result of prosecution, including attorneys’
fees, shall be recoverable from the owner or person having control of said dogs.



This page was intentionally left biank.



2/8/2021

Town of Kennebunkport, ME Ecode360

Town of Kennebunkport, ME

Monday, February 8, 2021

Chapter 80. Kennebunk River

[HISTORY: Adopted by the Town of Kennebunkport 7-10-1971; as amended through 6-10-2014. Subsequent
amendments noted where applicable.}

ATTACHMENTS -
Attachment 1 - Exhibit A .

§ 80-1. Purpose.

The purpose of this chapter is to provide for the just and orderly operation of marine activities on the Kennebunk River.

§ 80-2. Authority.

This chapter is adopted pursuant to 38 M.R.S.A. § 1 et seq. and the Home Rule Provisions of the Maine Constitution.

§ 80-3. Conflict with other provisions.

Where there is conflict between this chapter and any other federal, state, or local law, statute, regulation, rule or
ordinance, the more restrictive provisions shall apply.

§ 80-4. Amendments.

After public hearing by the Board of Selectmen, this chapter may be amended at an Annual or Special Town Meeting.

§ 80-5. River Committee.

A.

C.

The River Committee established by the Interlocal Agreement among Kennebunkport and Kennebunk shall be
responsible for all Kennebunk River harbor activities as set forth in the Agreement, this chapter and as otherwise
required by law.

The River Committee shall have the authority to establish and collect fees for moorings and harbor usage. Such
fees must be reasonably related to the cost of maintaining and regulating the Kennebunk River Harbor and may
include a charge to establish a capital reserve account for harbor dredging. However, before any such fees may be
imposed, the River Committee shall hold a public hearing preceded by at ieast 10 days' notice in a newspaper of
general circulation in Kennebunkport. The initial fees must also be approved by the Board of Selectmen before
becoming effective; thereafter, the River Committee may adopt amendments pursuant to the same procedure,
provided the Board of Selectmen may veto any changes within 14 days of adoption by the River Committee.

The River Committee is only authorized to spend such monies as are appropriated by Town Meeting.

§ 80-6. Harbor Master.

A.

The Harbor Master for the Kennebunk River is appointed annually by the Boards of Selectmen of Kennebunk and
Kennebunkport. Certain duties and responsibilities of the office are prescribed by Title 38 M.R.S.A. He has the
additional duty to administer and enforce the provisions of this chapter with the authority granted by law and through
his appointment as Harbor Master. For purposes of compensation and employment benefits, he shall be deemed an
employee of the Town of Kennebunk, which may charge pro rata shares of such expenses to Kennebunkport.
However, for all purposes of initial employment recommendation to the Board of Selectmen and subsequent
oversight and annual job performance review, he shall report solely to the River Committee, which may recommend

https:/fwww.ecode360.com/print/KE3910?guid=33972632&children=true

1/5



2/8/2021

Town of Kennebunkport, ME Ecode360
discipline or discharge to the Kennebunk Town Manager, who may take such discipline only for just cause after
notice and hearing.

He may utilize the Town office and the Kennebunk River Committee for assistance in the administrative aspects of
his responsibilities.

§ 80-7. River limits and channel.

A. Kennebunk River. For the purposes hereof (and the area regulated hereby) the "Kennebunk River" is defined as all

portions of said river within this municipality which extend and run generally southerly from the prolongation
southerly of the Kennebunkport and Arundel town boundary at Goff Brook, including all waters to the high tide levels
thereof, extending to a line drawn between the extreme offshore limits of the jetties at the mouth of said River.

Kennebunk River Channel.

(1) For the purposes of this chapter, the "federally designated portion" of the channel, so called, of the Kennebunk
River is defined as follows:

The entrance of the Kennebunk River Channel is 100 feet wide and runs from the mouth of the river to a point
beyond the Kennebunkport Marina, where it narrows to 75 feet in width. Thence it extends northerly, continuing
at a width of 75 feet, terminating at a line, the end-point coordinates of which are N191412.53, E417265.28 and
N191445.83, E417332.48 (NAD 1927, State Plane, Feet). All of said federally designated channel is as
depicted on plans encaptioned "Kennebunk River, Maine-Maintenance Dredging," dated July 19, 1984, bearing
drawing number 2226, consisting of two sheets, the same being incorporated herein by reference. The
northerly limit of the federal channel was established by US Public Law 104-33, October 12, 1996, which
amended the above-referenced plans of 1984,

(2) The "locally designated channel," so called, of the Kennebunk River is defined as follows:

A fifty-foot-wide locally designated channel, beginning at the northerly limit of the federally designated channel
and extending northward approximately 758 feet; thence a forty-foot-wide locally designated channel beginning
at the end of the fifty-foot-wide locally designated channel and extending northerly approximately 312 feet to
the Mathew J. Lanigan Bridge. All of said locally designated channel is as depicted on a plan encaptioned
"Kennebunk River Locally Designated Channel,” dated August 26, 2004, and prepared by the Southern Maine
Regional Planning Commission, the same being incorporated herein by reference.

§ 80-8. Rules of river use.

A. Prudent operation of vessels. Vessels shall be operated on the Kennebunk River in a reasonable manner so as not

to endanger persons or property or to cause excessive wash. In no case shall speeds exceed five knots while
operating on any portion of the Kennebunk River south of the aforementioned railroad bridge.

Government Wharf.

(1) The intended use of the floats and the facilities of Government Wharf is solely for the loading and unloading of
vessels, for the dockage of skiffs used by owners of vessels, and for such other uses as are specifically
authorized by the Board of Selectmen.

(2) No vessel may be left unattended on the westerly face of the floats or at Government Wharf for a period of
more than 1/4 hour, in no event shall any vessel not using said facilities for loading and unloading remain
thereat when any other vessel requires the use of said facilities for such purposes, and in no event shall any
vessel remain thereat in excess of four hours; in no event, excepting emergencies, shall the facilities at
Government Wharf be utilized for any purpose other than loading and unloading without written permission
from the Harbor Master. Boat owners wishing to leave a skiff at Government Wharf on a regular basis are
required to notify the Harbor Master of this intention. If, in the opinion of the Harbor Master, skiff tie-off space
becomes overcrowded, first priority for space will be accorded to commercial users.

(3) Skiffs tied to Government Wharf must be properly maintained, be kept bailed and must be secured so as to
keep Government Wharf clear for operations and not interfere with vessels landing and departing.

(4) Users of Government Wharf are responsible for properly cleaning up any spillage or untidiness resulting from
their operations.

(5) Failure to observe these regulations may result in loss of permission to use the Government Wharf facility and
floats and a penalty as set forth in § 80-9.

hitps:/fwww.ecode360.com/print/KE3910?guid=33972632&children=true

2/5



2/8/2021 Town of Kennebunkport, ME Ecode360

C. Traps in the river. No operation of fixed traps of any kind will be allowed in the Kennebunk River southerly of the
railroad bridge. Storage cages shall be permitted if attached to a vessel or to a vessel's mooring.

D. Record of moorings.

(1) The Harbor Master shall maintain a written record of the basic information on each mooring, including assigned
location, identifying number, vessel description, owner, mooring specifications and details and any additional
data deemed useful.

(2) The Harbor Master shall maintain the aforementioned plans of the channel and a chart of the harbor showing
current mooring location assignments.

(3) Each mooring location will be assigned an identifying number which must be marked in a legible fashion on the
marker buoy or log in at least three-inch numerals.

E. Mooring authorizations.

{1) No mooring shall be permitted, and no mooring shall be placed, utilized or allowed without written authorization
from the Harbor Master for the mooring of a specific vessel therein. Each day that a mooring remains in place
or is utilized in violation of this subsection shall be deemed a separate violation hereof.

(2) The Harbor Master shall have the authority to determine the total number of allowed moorings based on
available mooring sites. The Harbor Master may consult with the Kennebunk River Committee and any other
appropriate authority to determine mooring areas and their capacity. Commercial moorings shail comprise at
least 50% of the total number of mooring sites within the Kennebunk River. If an existing commercial mooring
becomes available within the Kennebunk River, it may not be assigned for use as a recreational or transient
mooring if such assignment would cause the number of commercial moorings to constitute less than 50% of the
total number of available mooring sites within the Kennebunk River.

(3) The Harbor Master may change the location of assigned mooring sites when the crowded condition of the river,
the need to conform with 38 M.R.S.A. §§ 3 and 7-A, or other conditions render the change desirable.

(4) The Harbor Master shall have absolute authority over all moorings and mooring locations in accordance with
the terms of this chapter and the laws of the State of Maine.

(5) Any mooring location which is not utilized by the holder of the mooring authorization therefor, or by an assignee
approved by the Harbor Master, for a term of 30 consecutive days during the months of June, July and August
of any year shall be declared vacant and shall thereupon be availabie for reassignment by the Harbor Master
except where the holder of the mooring has sent advance written nofice to the Harbor Master showing good
cause.

(6) No vessel greater than 40 feet shall be assigned a mooring space, except that should there be space available
outside of the federally designated channel a commercial vessel of up to 44 feet may be eligible for a mooring,
provided that it does not conflict with any existing moorings and/or create any hazards or obstructions to
navigation.

F. Mooring precedence for mooring locations.

(1) The rules contained in this subsection are intended to comply with the requirements of 38 M.R.S.A. §§ 3, 7-A, 8
and 11.

(2) The Harbor Master shall maintain a chronological list, according to the date and time, of all vessel owners
requesting mooring location assignment or reassignment to a new location.

(3) Except as otherwise required by law, the Harbor Master shall assign spaces as they become available from the
waiting list in accordance with the following priority guidelines:

(a) To shorefront owners who request for one mooring location immediately adjacent to frontage, and who
have no other current shorefront moorings, so long as the assignment of such a mooring is practicable and
so long as neither the mooring nor any vessel tied to the mooring encroaches upon the federal navigation
channels or anchorages or upon the natural channels established by the Board of Selectmen. The
assignment of a mooring site under this priority guideline shall not prevent the shorefront owner from
receiving additional mooring assignments under the allocation system for other moorings set forth in this
chapter. Under this provision, a "shorefront owner" is an owner of shore rights of at least 100 contiguous
feet of frontage.

(b) To resident commercial vessel owners, unless less than 10% of the moorings are currently assigned to
nonresident commercial owners, in which case the next mooring available shall be assigned to the first

https://www.ecode360.com/printyKE3910?guid=33972632&children=true 3/5



2/8/2021

Town of Kennebunkport, ME Ecode360

nonresident commercial vessel owner on the list.

{c) To resident pleasure vessel owners, uniess less than 10% of the moorings are currently assigned to
nonresident pleasure vessel owners, in which case the next mooring available shall be assigned to the first
nonresident pleasure vessel owner on the list.

(d) To nonresident commercial vessel owners.
(e} To nonresident pleasure vessel owners.

() A dedicated continuous run at the end of the Kennebunk River adjacent to Government Wharf running

northerly shall be kept specificaily for commercial fishing vessels only (Exhibit A).["]
[1 Editor's Note: Exhibit A is included as an aftachment to this chapter.

{4) Future mooring assignments will be on an as-available basis in accordance with the chronological listing of
requests and the foregoing priority guidelines. These priority guidelines shall not apply to the assignment of
moorings located within the area dredged pursuant to the Kennebunk River Federal Navigation Project, as
delineated by the US Army Corps of Engineers, also defined as the "Kennebunk River Channel."

G. Spedial rules for federal anchorage areas.

H.

(1) The following provisions are intended to comply with the requirements of the US Army Corps of Engineers for
federal anchorages and thus shall apply only to the foliowing portion of the Kennebunk River over which the
Harbor Master has control: the area dredged pursuant to the Kennebunk River Federal Navigation project, as
delineated by the US Army Corps of Engineers. Within the area described above (and only within this area) the
following rules shall apply:

(@) The priority guidelines under § 80-8F, Mooring precedence for mooring locations, in this chapter shall not
apply and the Harbor Master shall assign mooring spaces as they become available, from a chronological
waiting list, without regard to residency of the applicant.

{b) No priority shall be given to residents if skiff tie-off space becomes overcrowded.

(2) Nothing in this subsection shall be construed to prohibit the Harbor Master from giving priority to commercial
fishing vessel owners in mooring location and skiff tie-off space.

Channel to remain free of obstructions. The Harbor Master shall be empowered to ensure that the Kennebunk River
Channel shall remain navigable and free of obstructions.

§ 80-9. Violations and penalties.

A.

Violation of any of the provisions of this chapter shall be deemed a civil violation. They are enforceable by the
Harbor Master or any ather law enforcement officer with jurisdiction in Kennebunkport or upon the waters of the
Kennebunk River by an action in the form of a civil infraction in Maine District Court, District Ten, Division of Eastern
York, Biddeford; upon determination by said Court on a violation that occurred, the violator shall be fined not more
than $250 for each violation; each day a continuing violation exists is a separate violation of the provisions hereof.
All fines collected hereunder shall inure to the Harbor Committee budget.

Penalties for violations of the laws of Maine with regard to speed restrictions, reckiess operation of a vessel,
operation of a vessel while under the influence of liquor or drugs and all other violations of state statute shall be as
otherwise provided by law.

If the Harbor Master incurs costs in the conduct of his duty as a direct result of the failure of a vessel owner or
operator to comply with this chapter or the statutes of the State of Maine, the Harbor Master may recover those
costs and reasonable remuneration for his time by filing a civil complaint against such owner or operator in the
Maine District Court, District Ten, Division of Eastern York, Biddeford.

§ 80-10. Definitions.

As used in this chapter, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated:

COMMERCIAL FISHING

Fishing in which the fish harvested, either in whole or in part, are intended to enter commerce or enter commerce
through sale, barter or trade.

https:/iwww.ecode360.com/print/KE3910?guid=33972632&children=true

4/5



2/8/2021 Town of Kennebunkport, ME Ecode360

COMMERCIAL FISHING VESSEL
A vessel from which the owner obtains in excess of 67% of his earned income from commercial fishing.

COMMERCIAL VESSEL
A vessel from which the owner abtains in excess of 67% of his earned income. The definition of commercial vessel
includes commercial fishing vessel, unless otherwise indicated.

VESSEL
Includes boats of all sizes powered by sail, machinery or hand, scows, dredges, lobster, crab and shellfish cars, and
craft of any kind.

§ 80-11. Severability.

If any provision or clause of this chapter or application thereof to any person, persons or circumstances is held invalid,
such invalidity shall not offset other provisions or applications of the chapter which can be given effect without the invalid
provision or application, and to this end, provisions of this chapter are declared to be separable.

§ 80-12. Maine law.

Additional laws relating to boating are contained in M.R.S.A. Titles 12, 17 and 38 and the Department of Marine
Resources laws and regulations.

Select Language V¥

https://www.ecode360.com/print/KE39107?guid=33972632&children=true 5/5



2-8 KENNEBUNK RIVER PASSAGE ORDINANCE

8.1 Boat Operation

A) Boats shall not be operated faster than 5 knots per hour.

B) A vessel is liable for any damage or injury caused by its wake.
C) Water-skiing will be allowed in posted areas only.

D) No water skiing shall be allowed between the Railroad Bridge and the outer limit of the
Kennebunk River jetty.

E) Unmuffled noise from engines, outboards, amplifying systems, radios, and the like shall be
kept at a minimum when in the proximity of piers, floats, or yacht anchorages anywhere in the
river.

F) No person shall operate any vessel in a reckless or negligent manner so as to endanger
the life, safety or property of any person.

G) No vessels shall run their engines with propellers turning while tied to floats or wharves.
Vessels requiring dock trials may do so only with permission of the Harbormaster.

8.2 Moorings

A) All moorings must be identified and must be registered with the Harbormaster and are
subject to the requirements of Section 10-5 of the Harbor Ordinance.

B) If a mooring is not to be used, the owner shall notify the Harbormaster so that the mooring
may be removed and the space made available for another mooring. Mooring rights under
this section (2-8) are non-transferable.

C) Moorings shall be assigned in accordance with Section 10.5.E of the Harbor Ordinance.

D) Vessels may be required to be moored bow and stern on direction of the Harbormaster.

E) Moorings shall not be less than the following minimum sizes: Vessels to 18' LOA- no less
than 500 pound granite block; Vessels 18' and over- no less than 1000 pound granite block.

F) All moorings shall have a 1 inch mooring pin through the block and chain to reach the

mean low water level. Total length of the mooring pennant, from block to mooring cleat, will
be as set by the Harbormaster. The minimum buoy size shall be 10 inches in diameter.

27



8.3 Berthings

A) Tie-up periods at the Town Floats shall be limited to 15 minutes. A tie-up limit at the Town
floats or wharves for visitors at night, or for vesseis with breakdowns, will be limited at the
discretion of the Harbormaster.

B) All vessels entering the Kennebunk River are subject to the direction of the Harbormaster
who should be consulted before anchoring or tying up to any of the facilities or moorings.

C) All draggers while berthed at wharves shall have their trawl doors swung inside the rails at
all times.

D) No fishing gear, equipment, or any other matter shall be allowed to remain on the Town
wharves or floats for over 24 hours without permission of the Harbormaster.

E) No swimming will be allowed from any public (town, state, or federal) wharf or float.
8.4 Pollution

A) No oil, gasoline or other petroleum products shall be dumped or pumped overboard.
When such products are accidentally spilled, the spiller will be liable for the damage caused.

B) No rubbish, garbage or dead fish shall be discharged into the river.

C) No derelict vessels, motors, etc. or dilapidated structures shall be removed or repaired
without orders of the Harbormaster.

8.5 Miscellaneous

A) Fixed or floating signs may be posted as directed by the Harbormaster to encourage or to
help enforce this section (2-8).

B) Parades, water carnivals or any water activity other than normal traffic shall require the
written permission of the Harbormaster and shall be regulated by him.

ADOPTED 04/06/1971
AMENDED 06/14/2000

28



2-10 KENNEBUNK HARBOR ORDINANCE
10.1 Purpose

The purpose of this Ordinance is to provide for the just and orderly operation of marine
activities on the Kennebunk River.

10.2 River Committee

The River Committee established by the Interlocal Agreement between

Kennebunk and Kennebunkport, or any successor Interlocal Agreement, shall be responsible
for all Kennebunk River harbor activities as set forth in the Agreement, the Ordinance and as
otherwise required by law.

The River Committee shall have the authority to establish and collect fees for moorings and
harbor usage. Such fees must be reasonably related to the cost of maintaining and
regulating the Kennebunk River harbor and may include a charge to establish a capital
reserve account for harbor dredging. However, before any such fees may be imposed, the
River Committee shall hold a public hearing preceded by at least 10 days notice in a
newspaper in general circulation in Kennebunk. The initial fees must be approved by the
Select Board before becoming effective; thereafter, the River Committee may adopt
amendments pursuant to the same procedure provided the Select Board may veto any
changes within 14 days of adoption by the River Committee.

The River Committee is only authorized to spend such monies as are appropriated by Town
Meeting.

10.3 Harbormaster

The Harbormaster for the Kennebunk River is appointed annually by the Boards of
Selectmen of Kennebunk and Kennebunkport. Certain duties and responsibilities of this
office are prescribed by Title 38, M.R.S.A. He has the additional duty to administer and
enforce the provisions of this ordinance with the authority granted by law and through his
appointment as Harbormaster. For purposes of compensation and employment benefits, he
shall be deemed an employee of the Town of Kennebunk, which may charge pro-rata shares
of such expenses to Kennebunkport. However, for all purposes of initial employment
recommendation to the Select Board and subsequent oversight and annual job performance
review, he shall report solely to the River Committee, which may recommend discipline or
discharge to the Kennebunk Town Manager who may take such discipline only for just cause
after notice and hearing.

He may utilize the Town Office and the Kennebunk River Committee for assistance in the
administrative aspects of his responsibilities.

30



10.4 River Limits and Channel

4.A) Kennebunk River: For the purposes hereof (and the area regulated hereby) the
Kennebunk River is defined as all portions of said River within this municipality which extend
and run generally southerly from the prolongation southerly of the Kennebunkport and
Arundel town boundary at Goff Brook, including all waters to the high tide levels thereof,
extending to a line drawn between the extreme offshore limits of the jetties at the mouth of
said River.

4.B) Kennebunk River Channel:
For the purposes of this Ordinance, the Federally Designated portion of the channel, so
called, of the Kennebunk River is defined as follows:

The entrance of the Kennebunk River Channel is 100 feet wide and runs from the mouth of
the river to a point beyond the Kennebunkport Marina, where it narrows to 75 feet in width.
Thence it extends northerly, continuing at a width of 75 feet, terminating at a line, the end-
point coordinates of which are N191412.53, E417265.28. and N191445.83, E417332.48
(NAD 1927, State Plane, Feet). All of said Federally Designated_channel is as depicted on
plans encaptioned “Kennebunk River, Maine-Maintenance Dredging”, dated July 19, 1984,
bearing drawing number 2226, consisting of two sheets, the same being incorporated herein
by reference. The northerly limit of the federal channel was established by U.S. Public Law
104-33, October 12, 1996 which amended the above referenced plans of 1984.

The Locally Designated Channel, so called, of the Kennebunk River is defined as follows:

A 50 foot wide Locally Designated Channel beginning at the northerly limit of the
Federally Designated Channel and extending northward approximately 758 feet;
thence a 40 foot wide Locally Designated Channel beginning at the end of the 50 foot
wide Locally Designated Channel and extending northerly approximately 312 feet to
the Mathew J Lanigan Bridge. All of said Locally Designated Channel is as depicted
on a plan encaptioned “Kennebunk River Locally Designated Channel,” dated August
26, 2004, and prepared by the Southern Maine Regional Planning Commission, the
same being incorporated herein by reference.

10.5 Rules of River Use

5.A) Prudent Operation of Vessels: Vessels shall be operated on the Kennebunk River in a
reasonable manner so as not to endanger persons or property or to cause excessive wash.
In no case shall speeds exceed five (5) knots while operating on any portion of the
Kennebunk River south of the aforementioned Railroad Bridge.

5.B) Traps in the River: No operation of fixed traps of any kind will be allowed in the

Kennebunk River southerly of the Railroad Bridge. Storage cages shall be permitted if
attached to a vessel or to a vessel's mooring.

31



5.C) Record of Moorings: The Harbormaster shall maintain a written record of the basic
information on each mooring including assigned location, identifying number, vessel
description, owner, mooring specifications and details and any additional data deemed
useful.

The Harbormaster will maintain the aforementioned plans of the Channel and a chart of the
Harbor showing current mooring location assignments.

Each mooring location will be assigned at identifying number which must be marked in a
legible fashion on the marker buoy or log in at least three inch (3") numerals.

5.D) Mooring Authorizations: No moorings shall be permitted, and no moorings shall be
placed, utilized or allowed without written authorization from the Harbormaster for the
mooring of a specific vessel therein. Each day that a mooring remains in place or is utilized
in violation of this section shall be deemed a separate violation hereof.

The Harbormaster shall have the authority to determine the total number of allowed moorings
based on available Mooring Sites. The Harbor Master may consult with the Kennebunk River
Committee and any other appropriate authority to determine mooring areas and their
capacity. Commercial Moorings shall comprise at least 50% of the total number of Mooring
Sites within the Kennebunk River. If an existing Commercial Mooring becomes available
within the Kennebunk River, it may not be assigned for use as a Recreational or Transient
Mooring if such assignment would cause the number of Commercial Moorings to constitute
less than 50% of the total number of available mooring sites within the Kennebunk River.

The Harbor Master may change the location of assigned Mooring Sites when the crowded
condition of the river, the need to conform with Title 38 M.R.S.A., §§ 3, 7-A, or other
conditions render the change desirable.

The Harbor Master absolute authority over all moorings and mooring locations in accordance
with the terms of this Ordinance and the laws of the State of Maine.

No Vessel greater than forty feet (40ft) shall be assigned a mooring space, except that should
there be space available outside of the Federally designated Channel a commercial vessel of
up to forty four feet (44ft) may be eligible for a mooring provided that it does not conflict with
any existing moorings and/or create any hazards or obstructions to navigation.

Any mooring location which is not utilized by the holder of the mooring authorization
therefore, or by an assignee approved by the Harbormaster, for a term of thirty (30)
consecutive days during the months of June, July and August of any year shall be declared
vacant and shall thereupon be available for reassignment by the Harbormaster except where
the holder of the mooring has sent advance written notice to the Harbormaster showing good
cause.

5.E) Mooring Precedence for Mooring Locations: The rules contained in this section are
intended to comply with the requirements of Title 38 M.R.S.A. Section 3, 7-A, 8 and 11.

32



The Harbormaster shall maintain a chronological list, according to the date and time, of all
vessel owners requesting mooring location assignment or reassignment to a new location.

Except as otherwise required by law, the Harbormaster shall assign spaces as they become
available from the waiting list in accordance with the following priority guidelines:

a. To shorefront owners who request for one mooring location immediately adjacent to
frontage, and who have no other current shorefront moorings, so long as the
assignment of such a mooring is practicable and so long as neither the mooring nor
any vessel tied to the mooring encroaches upon the federal navigation channels or
anchorages or upon the natural channels established by the Select Board. The
assignment of a mooring site under this priority guideline shall not prevent the
shorefront owner from receiving additional mooring assignments under the allocation
system for other moorings set forth in this ordinance.

Under this provision, a “shorefront owner” is an owner of shore rights of at least 100
contiguous feet of frontage.

b. To resident commercial vessel owners, unless less than 10% of the moorings are
currently assigned to non-resident commercial owners, in which case the next mooring
available shall be assigned to the first non-resident commercial vessel owner on the
list.

c. To resident pleasure vessel owners, unless less than 10% of the moorings are
currently assigned to non-resident pleasure vessel owners, in which case the next
mooring available shall be assigned to the first non-resident pleasure vessel owner on
the list.

d. To non-resident commercial vessel owners.
e. To non-resident pleasure vessel owners.

f. A dedicated continuous run at the end of the Kennebunk River adjacent to
Government Wharf running northerly shall be kept specifically for commercial fishing
vessels only. (Exhibit A) (06-10-2014)

Future mooring assignments will be on an as available basis in accordance with the
chronological listing of requests and the foregoing priority guidelines. These priority
guidelines shall not apply to the assignment of moorings located within the area dredged
pursuant to the Kennebunk River Federal Navigation Project as delineated by the U.S. Army
Corps of Engineers also defined as the Kennebunk River Channel.

33



5.F) Special Rules for Federal Anchorage Areas

The following provisions are intended to comply with the requirements of the U.S. Army
Corps of Engineers for federal anchorages and thus shall apply only to the following Portion
of the Kennebunk River over which the Harbormaster has control: the area dredged pursuant
to the Kennebunk River Federal Navigation project, as delineated by the U.S. Army Corps of
Engineers.

Within the area described above (and only within this area) the following rules shall apply:

(1) The priority guidelines under “Mooring Precedence for Mooring Locations” under
Section 5.E of this ordinance shall not apply and the Harbormaster shall assign
mooring spaces as they become available, from a chronological waiting list, without
regard to residency of the applicant.

(2) No priority shall be given to residents if skiff tie-off space becomes overcrowded.

Nothing in this section shall be construed to prohibit the Harbormaster from giving
priority to commercial vessel owners in mooring location and skiff tie-off space.

5.G) Channel to Remain Free of Obstructions

The Harbormaster shall be empowered to ensure that the Federally Designated Channel and
Locally Designated Channel of the Kennebunk River shall remain navigable and free of
obstructions.

10.6 Penalties

Violation of any of the provisions of this Ordinance shall be deemed a civil violation. They are
enforceable by the Harbormaster or any other law enforcement officer with jurisdiction in
Kennebunk or upon the waters of the Kennebunk River by an action in the form of a civil
infraction in the Maine District Court, District Ten, Division of Eastern York, Biddeford; upon a
determination by said Court on a violation that occurred the violator shall be fined as set by
the Select Board’s fee schedule for each violation; each day a continuing violation exists is a
separate violation of the provisions hereof. All fines collected hereunder shall inure to the
Harbor Committee budget. (06-12-02)

Penalties for violations of the laws of Maine with regard to speed restrictions, reckless
operation of a vessel, operation of a vessel while under the influence of liquor or drugs and all
other violations of State Statute shall be as otherwise provided by law.

If the Harbormaster incurs costs in the conduct of his duty as a direct result of the failure of a
vessel owner or operator to comply with this ordinance or the Statutes of the State of Maine,
the Harbormaster may recover those costs and reasonable remuneration for his time by filing
a civil complaint against such owner or operator in the Maine District Court, District Ten,
Division of Eastern York, Biddeford.

34



10.7 Definitions

Vessel: The word “vessel” as used herein shall include boats of all sizes powered by sail,
machinery or hand, scows, dredges, lobster, crab and shellfish cars, and craft of any kind.

Commercial Vessel: A vessel from which the owner obtains in excess of 67% of his earned
income. The definition of Commercial Vessel includes Commercial Fishing Vessel, unless
otherwise indicated (7/17/2-012).

Commercial Fishing Vessel: A vessel from which the owner obtains in excess of 67% of his
earned income from commercial fishing (7/17/2012).

Commercial fishing is defined as fishing in which the fish harvested, either in whole or in part,
are intended to enter commerce or enter commerce through sale, barter or trade.
(6/10/2014)

10.8 Separability

If any provision or clause of this ordinance or application thereof to any person, persons or
circumstances is held invalid, such invalidity shall not offset other provisions or applications of
the Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application and to
this end provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be separable.

Where there is a conflict between this ordinance and any other Federal, State, or Local law,
statute, regulation, rule or ordinance, the more restrictive provision shall apply.

10.9 Maine Law

Additional laws relating to boating are contained in M.R.S.A. Titles 12, 17 and 38 and
Department of Marine Resources Laws and Regulators.

10.10 Authority

This ordinance is adopted pursuant to Title 38 M.R.S.A. sec 1, et seq., Title 30-A M.R.S.A.
sec. 3001, and the Home Rule Provisions of the Maine Constitution.

10.11 Amendments

After public hearing by the Select Board, this ordinance may be amended at an annual or
special Town Meeting, provided such amendment is consistent with any interlocal agreement
that may be in effect at the time concerning management of the Kennebunk River, including
the “River Committee Interlocal Agreement”, dated July 1, 2000, or any amendments or
successor agreements thereto.

35



10.12 Fees shall be as shown on a fee schedule set by vote of the Select Board each year,
after notice and hearing. (06-12-2002)

ADOPTED 03/19/1985; AMENDED 06/14/2000; 06/12/2002; 06/16/2005; 06/21/2011; 06/10/2014

Exhibit A

36



AGENDA ITEM
DIVIDER




Item 6

TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE

~ INCORPORATED 1653 ~

December 4%, 2021
Memo: 52 Ocean Avenue Sidewalk Removal Request

From: Werner Gilliam, CFM Director of Planning and Development
Michael Claus, PE Director of Public Works

To: Laurie Smith Town Manager, Board of Selectmen

The town has received a request from Scott and Cheryl Mahoney, owners of 52 Ocean Avenue, to

remove a portion of sidewalk that runs parallel to their property along Ocean Avenue.

6 Elm Street, P.O. Box 566, Kennebunkport, Maine 04046 ¢ Tel: (207) 967-4243 Fax: (207) 967-8470



TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE

INCORPORATED 1653 ~

This request has been reviewed by Planning and Public Works. Since this section of sidewalk does
not provide any clear public benefit and the crosswalks have been relocated with the recent
redevelopment of Silas Perkins Park, staff have no objection with this request. The property owner
has agreed to have Ted Carter Landscape and design remove the sidewalk and replant the area with
grass. There are no additional large-scale plantings or hardscape improvements requested to be
located within the Right of Way beyond the replacement of a pre-existing walkway to the house as

shown on the plan below.

Antltbe (Semne Grinfland

o0 v oy oy gt

IDENCE

iine

6 Elm Street, P.O. Box 566, Kennebunkport, Maine 04046 « Tel: (207) 967-4243 Fax: (207) 967-8470



AGENDA ITEM
DIVIDER




Item 7
02.11.21

Kennebunkport Short-term Rental License/Ordinance

A. Purpose:
The purpose of this ordinance/license is to require the disclosure and licensing of short-term rentals
operated within the Town of Kennebunkport.; Furthermore, -this Ordinance is intended to ensure
that residential neighborhoods are not unduly impacted by the operation of short-term rentals
within the Town. This will be accomplished by a licensing program that enables the Town to monitor
and track the proliferation of short-term rentals within its borders, includes modest performance
standards intended to protect property owners, renters, and neighbors along with limits to the
numbers of short-term rentals within the community. Due to the historic nature and longstanding
tradition of short-term rentals within the Goose Rocks Beach neighborhood, this limited area will
not be subject to licensing limits; it will, however, still be subject to all other requirements in this

ordinance.

B. Applicability:
1. Permitted Short-term Rentals. Legally existing residential dwelling units may be used as Short-
term rentals upon the issuance of a Short-term rental license for the premises in accordance with
the requirements of this Ordinance.

2. Prohibited Short-term Rentals. No person may offer for rent, operate, or otherwise use any
dwelling unit | in the Town of Kennebunkport for Short-term rentals if:
(a) Such person has not secured or maintained a valid Short-term rental license for the

premises;or
(b) The accommodations are an accessory apartment constructed or permitted after November

3, 2009, or a recreational vehicle, trailer or tent.

3. Lodging Establishments Exempt. The following lodging establishment uses are exempt from the
licensing requirements and standards of this Ordinance: hotels, motels, bed and breakfasts, inns,
seasonal rental accommodation complexes, and residential rental accommodations.




02.11.21

C.

Definitions:

Advertising: Any form of communication for marketing that is used to encourage, persuade or
manipulate viewers, readers or listeners into contracting for goods and/or services as may be
viewed through various media, including, but not limited to, newspapers, magazines, flyers,
handbills, television commerecials, radio, signage, direct mail, websites or text messages.

Dwelling unit: One or more rooms arranged for complete, independent housekeeping purposes with
space for living and sleeping; space or facilities for eating or cooking; and provisions for sanitation.
For purposes of this regulation Recreational vehicles are not considered dwelling units.

Good Neighbor guidelines: A document prepared by the town that summarizes the general rules of
conduct, consideration and respect, including, without limitation, provisions pertaining to the use

and occupancy of a dwelling unit used or occupied as a short-term rental.

Goose Rocks Beach Neighborhood: (asert-BefinitionSee the area defined on Exhibit A).

Owner: A-An individual person or persons or an entity whe-that is the owner of record of real
property as documented by deed or other document evidencing ownership recorded at the York
County Registry of Deeds.

Seasonal rental accommodation complex: a lodging business located on one parcel of land that
makes a room, a group of rooms, and/or cottages available for a tenancy of less than 30
days on a seasonal basis.

Short-term rental: The use, control, management or operation of a legally-existing residential
dwelling unit offered for rent for transient occupancy for dwelling, sleeping or lodging purposes by
tenants-short-term rental guests for a tenancy of less than 30 consecutive days, for compensation,
directly or indirectly, excluding motels, hotels, bed and breakfasts, inns, seasonal rental
accommodation complexes, and residential rental accommodations.

Short-term rental guest: Any person who rents, licenses, occupies or has the right to occupy a
dwelling unit for less than 30 consecutive days.

General Requirements:

1. License Required: No Short-term rental shall be advertised, rented, or operated without first
obtaining a Short-term rental License. Failure-to-obtain-orrenew-a-Heense-priorto-offering;

7
’- o ala A48 - -

daysafterthe license-deadline-shall-be-considered-late—A short-term rental license shall be valid for
the calendar year in-for which the license is issued. The property must remain in compliance with
the short-term rental license for the calendar year in which the license is issued.



02.11.21

a. Short-term rental license renewal. Short-term rental licenses shall expire on December 31st of
each calendar year, and Short-term rental license holders may renew such license by submitting
a renewal application, en-fermsprevided via a renewal process established by the Town. After
the effective date of this Ordinance, any duly licensed short-term rental may continue operating
as long as the license is current and renewed on or before the annual renewal deadline
established by the Town. If the license is not renewed within the prescribed timeframe, the
license expires and this protection clause no longer applies. Any renewal application received

after December3istofthepreviouslicense-year the advertised deadline for submission shall

be considered late and deemed a new application.

b. The Board of Selectmen shall establish fees for the licensure of Short-term rentals. Licensing
fees for Short-term rentals shall be assessed based upon the following criteria:

i. Tier I: Short-term rentals with 0-3 bedrooms;

ii. Tier II: Short-term rentals with 4+ bedrooms.

2. Non-transferability. Short-term rental licenses issued under this Ordinance shall not be transferable
to a new Owner or location. Any Change of Ownership shall require a new license, except transfers of
the real estate and related license in a Permitted Transfer. A “Permitted Transfer” is a transfer of the
subject real estate and the related license to a Permitted Transferee. A “Permitted Transferee” includes
(1) another current Owner of the subject real estate; (2) the spouse, child(ren) and/or grandchild(ren) of
a current Owner; (3) a trust for the benefit of a current Owner, a current Owner’s spouse, a current
Owner’s child(ren) and/or grandchild(ren) of a current Owner; or (4) for estate planning purposes, a
trust, limited liability company (“LLC"), corporation or other entity, as long as the beneficiaries of the
trust or owners of the entity, as applicable, are a current Owner, a current Owner’s spouse, a current
Owner’s child(ren) and/or grandchild(ren) of a current Owner. In the case of a transfer to a Permitted
Transferee, the Permitted Transferee shall become a “Licensee” and an “Owner”, and the definition of
“Permitted Transferee” shall apply to the new Licensee/Owner.

Licensees/Owners shall be required to certify that they comply with the provisions of this section
annually and that they have not engaged in any transfers, or been transferees in any transfers, that are
not Permitted Transfers. See Section F.3 herein.

Licenses are limited to the dwelling unit for which they are issued and shall not be transferable to a
different dwelling unit.




02.11.21

3. Advertising: It shall be unlawful to advertise occupancy or use of a short-term rental that has not
been licensed. For the purposes of this section, the term "advertise" shall mean any form of
communication for marketing that is used to encourage, persuade or manipulate viewers, readers or
listeners into contracting for goods and/or services as may be viewed through various media
included, but not limited to newspapers, magazines, flyers, handbills, television commerecials, radio,
signage, direct mail, websites or text messages. The short-term rental advertising must be consistent
with the terms of the short-term rental license, and all advertisements of the short-term rental must
include the current short-term rental license number.

4. Registration record: The short-term rental owner must (a) maintain accurate, up-to-date records
of all rental transactions involving the short-term rental, including the number of tenants and the
length of their stays, and upcoming reservations; and (b) present said information to Town
inspection officials upon request. Failure of the short-term rental owner to provide this information
within 5 business days of a Town request for the same shall be considered a violation of this section.

5. Notice: The Short-term rental license holder must post in plain sight near the entrance to the
Short-term rental a notice that identifies the Short-term rental license number, and the name,
address, phone number(s), and email address of the owner of the Short-term rental, and/or the
owner’s local contact person._Such notice may be posted in plain sight in the interior of the Short-
term rental. The Short-term rental license holder shall also post. the license provided by the Town.

E. Review Procedure:

Issuance procedure:

1. Application submission; completeness. Short-term rental License applications shall be submitted to
the Town Clerk. Applications for licenses for the upcoming calendar year may be submitted beginning in
October of the previous license year. The Town Clerk, or the Town Clerk’s designee, shall review all
applications for completeness and accuracy and in the order that they were received.

 The Town el shalll | harite " " .

23. Application, License fee. The Town Clerk shall provide a Short-term rental application to be
completed by the applicant and submitted to the Town Clerk accompanied by the Short-term rental
license fee as established by the Board of Selectmen. The Short-term rental application shall include a
non-exclusive checklist of code requirements that the property owner shall demonstrate compliance
with.

43. Town clerk authority. The Town clerk shall have the authority to issue a Short-term rental license.
The Town Clerk, or the Town Clerk’s designee, shall determine if the application has been properly
completed before any license is issued.

54. Inspection. Netwithstandingthe provisions-ofSectionH2)- the first-time that a-Shortterm rental

’
) a¥ail ar o ANnco a Ay o - a¥a 'a¥a Fa at Xa! aman
= c—1ot+d - 5 - od




02.11.21

Anytime that a Short-term rental application is submitted for a property, the Short-term rental applicant

shall certify on the Short-term rental application that the proposed Short-term rental property complies
with the Short-term rental Standards in Section G, and with building code requirements.

The Code Enforcement Officer shall inspect the licensed premises once every five vears, to determine
compliance with the Short-term standards in Section G.

5. Transitional Provisions for Licensing of Pre-Existing Short-Term Rentals. Persons or entities who
operated a legally-existing residential dwelling unit as a Short-term rental and who received reservations
for Short-term rentals at the same premises prior to the Effective Date of this Ordinance shall be
required to obtain a Short-term rental license for said premises by submitting an application to the
Town Clerk no later than [DATE], which application must contain an affidavit or other sworn statement
by the Owner, along with documented evidence, certifying that the premises were previously used for
short-term rental use by one or more tenants for a period of less than 30 consecutive days per tenancy
and for at least fourteen (14) total days in a calendar vear in any one of the following years: 2019, 2020,
or 2021.

Upon review and approval of a timely application submitted for a license containing sufficient evidence
of previous short-term rental use as required above, the Town Clerk shall issue a license for each such
premises, without the need for a prior inspection of said premises by the Code Enforcement Officer or
designee as is otherwise required in section E(4).

6. Issuance. If the Town Clerk, or the Town Clerk’s designee, in consultation with the Code Enforcement
Officer, determines that the proposed Short-term rental application complies with the Short-term rental
Standards, a-the Town Clerk shall issue the applicant a Short-term rental license shall-be-issued in
accordance with the limits established in Section | below.

F. Submission Requirements:
The Short-term rental license application shall include the following information:
1. Location. The street address and map/ block/lot number of the Short-term rental property.

2. Contact Person/Owner Responsibility. The name of the owner of the Short-term rental property and
contact information, including address and telephone number. If the owner is anything other than a
natural person, then the following information must also be included: the name of each individual
person who has an ownership interest in any entity that is the record owner, including, without
limitation, all beneficiaries of any trust, and all members and shareholders of a limited liability company,




02.11.21

corporation or other entity. In addition, if someone other than the owner is acting as the local contact
person, contact information for that person shall also be provided. Regardless of who enters the Short-
term rental agreement, or who may be designated as the owner’s contact person, the property owner

shall be responsible for compliance with the Short-term rental Ordinance provisions.

3. For renewal applications, Licensees/Owners shall be required to certify annually that they have not
engaged in any transfers of the licensed premises, or been transferees in any transfers, that are not
Permitted Transfers under Section D.2 of this Ordinance.

34. All information needed to demonstrate compliance with the standards listed below.

G. Standards:

The Town Clerk shall issue a Short-term rental license upon the applicant satisfying the above
requirements if the following standards are met:

1. Code compliance. An applicant’s property, without limitation, shall comply with the following building
safety reguirements.

a. Smoke Alarms: Smoke alarms shall be instailed in the following locations: 1. In each bedroom. 2.
Outside each separate sleeping area in the immediate vicinity of the bedrooms. 3. On each additional
story of the dwelling, including basements and habitable attics

b. Carbon Monoxide Alarms: If a house has an attached .garage or a fuel fired appliance, a carbon
monoxide alarm shall be installed outside each bedroom in the immediate vicinity of the bedrooms.

c. Portable Fire Extinguishers: At least one portable fire extinguisher shall be mounted in a prominent
location. One size/type 2/A is required or two size/type 1/A extinguishers.




02.11.21

2. The applicant shall provide floor plans of the dwelling unit that shows the location of the alarms and
fire extinguisher(s).

3. Building evacuation plan. A building evacuation plan shall be prominently posted in the Short-term
rental property during the rental period.

4. Sanitary waste disposal. The applicant shall submit information demonstrating that adequate sanitary
waste disposal is available in compliance with the Maine Subsurface Wastewater Disposal Rules, or that
the property is served by public sewer. This shall include the total number of bedrooms included in the
property, any additional sleeping space, and the total number of tenants that the property
accommodates. The total number of tenants used to determine adequacy of sanitary waste disposal
shall not be less than the total number of tenants that the property is advertised to accommodate. For
the purpose of evaluating the adequacy of a subsurface disposal system, every two tenants shall be
equivalent to one bedroom.

5. Parking. The applicant shall include a depiction designating parking spaces that will be provided for
tenants and guests on the same lot where the Short-term rental is located. Guest parking at the Short-
term rental shall occur in parking spaces designated by the applicant, and the number of guest vehicles
allowed at the Short-term rental shall be limited to the number of on-site parking spaces designated by
the applicant. Garage parking spaces not allowed for tenant use shall not be used to meet the Short-
term rental parking requirement. Tenants and guests of Short-term rentals are prohibited from parking
in a manner that impedes access by emergency vehicles to the property or any other dwelling in the
neighborhood.

6. Good neighbor guidelines.

7. Limit-enreptabntensityOccupancy limits.

The maximum tenant eapaeity-occupancy of a short-term rental shall be limited to no more than 2
tenants per bedroom, plus 2 additional tenants total for the entire dwelling unit. By way of example,
the maximum tenant capacity for a three-bedroom dwelling short-term rental is eight (8) tenants (i.e., 3
bedrooms multiplied by 2 tenants, plus an additional 2 tenants for a total of 8). ferne-morethant

seldidenalslecpingsraces

H. Suspension and Revocation of License:

A license for a Short-term rental may be conditioned, suspended or revoked by the Board of Selectmen
after a public hearing if the Board of Selectmen determine that a violation of this ordinance, any
applicable statute, ordinance, or regulation, or Short-term rental license certification, condition, or
criteria has occurred.

1. Violations of this Ordinance. Violations of this ordinance include, but are not limited to, the following:



02.11.21

a. Providing false or misleading information on an application, or renewal application, for a
Short-term rental license;

b. Failure to provide the registration records as provided in Section D(4) within 5 business days
of a Town request for such records;

c. Failure to comply with the parking provisions of Section G(5) of this Ordinance;

d. Failure to comply with the rental intensity-Himitationsoccupancy limits of Section G(7) of this
Ordinance;

e. Failure to acquire and/or display the required short term rental license number or include the
license number in any advertising of the licensed premisess:

ef. Violation of any Short-term rental license certification, condition, or criteria;

Fg. Violation of any statute, ordinance, or regulation applicable to the Short-term rental
property.

2. Complaints Concerning Short-term rentals. The Code Enforcement Officer shall establish and
maintain a log of all complaints for each Short-term rental received and substantiated by the Town. The
Code Enforcement Officer shall seek the correction of all substantiated complaints by the Short-term
rental license holder.

3. Suspension or Revocation of a-PermitLicense. When, in the judgement of the Code Enforcement
Officer, the nature and/or number of complaints warrants further review of the Short-term rental
license, the Code Enforcement Officer shall provide a report of the same to the Board of Selectmen for
its consideration. The Board of Selectmen may condition, suspend, or revoke a Short-term rental
license, following a public hearing, on the basis of the licensee’s non-compliance with this
ordinance, any applicable law, ordinance, or regulation, or Short-term rental license certification,
condition, or criteria.

4. Appeal. Any person aggrieved by the decision of the Board of Selectmen to suspend or revoke a
Short-term rental license may appeal the decision of the Board of Selectmen to Superior Court, pursuant
to Maine Rule of Civil Procedure 80B, within thirty (30) days of the Board of Selectmen’s decision.

I. Limitations on anrd-AllecatiensoefAnnual Licenses for Short-Term Rental Units:

The Town Clerk shall issue Short-term rental licenses on an annual basis. The total number of anaual
licenses issued in each calendar vear shall be set eaehyear annually by the Board of Selectmen-at-thei¢

first-meeting-ef the-calendaryear. The limitation on the total number of anauaklicenses set by the

Board of Selectmen shall first go into effect on January 1, 2023.

1. Formula. The total number of arauallicenses issued in each calendar vear shall be set by the Board of
Selectmen annually according to a formula based in part upon a percentage of the total number of

residential dwelling units in the Town of Kennebunkport. the-follewing-formula: [InsertFormulal:




02.11.21

32. Goose Rocks Beach Neighborhood. No Short-term rental located in the Goose Rocks Beach

Neighborhood [as depicted on the attached map] shall be advertised, rented, or operated as a Short-
term rental without first obtaining a Short-term rental license. Licensed Short-term rentals located in
the Goose Rocks Beach Neighborhood [as depicted on the attached map] shall not be counted towards
the total number of Short-term rental licenses to be set annually by the Board of Selectmen under
Section I.1 herein, and to be issued on an annual basis thereafter by the Town.

43. Effective Date. This Ordinance and all the licensing standards contained herein shall go into effect on
January 1, 2022.

J. Penalties for Violations: Enforcement

In the event the Owner or Owner’s guests violate this Ordinance or the terms and conditions of the
license, the Town, in addition to the suspension or revocation of the then-current license pursuant to
Section H above, may also prohibit the Owner from licensing the dwelling unit for 12 months following
the current licensing expiration date, after which the owner may submit a new application for licensure-

Violations shall also be subject to fines and penalties as set forth in this section and in a penalty
schedule established by the Board of Selectmen.

Any such fines or penaities may be in addition to any suspension or revocation imposed in accordance
with the provisions of Section H of this Ordinance.

The Town may institute or cause to be instituted any and all actions, legal or equitable, that may be
appropriate or necessary for the enforcement of the provisions of this Ordinance. in any court action ,
the Town may seek injunctive relief in addition to or instead of fines/penalties. The Town shall be
entitled to recover its costs of enforcement, including its reasonable attorneys’ fees.

JK. Additional Regulations
The Board of Selectmen may adopt regulations implementing the provisions of this Ordinance.

9



Exhibit A

bn.ug‘ o

Biddeford

Paoj g4

Biddefor:

ST s-‘s!ﬂ\h
T ..Q




AGENDA ITEM
DIVIDER




Item 8

N e

o

TOWNOFKENNEBUNKPORT,MAINE

INCORPORATED 1653
Memorandum

To: Board of Selectmen

Fr. Laurie Smith, Town Manager

Re: Proposal to lease electric vehicles
Dt: February 5, 2021

As part of the Town'’s climate change goals, recently adopted by the Board of
Selectmen, staff have been researching the suitability of electric and hybrid vehicles
for municipal operations. In late January | was contacted by a salesman from
Westbrook Rowe Ford making me aware of a proposal via Hyundai. Currently
Hyundai is offering a 10,000 mile a year lease on the Hyundai Kona EV to
Municipalities for $0 a month. There are $25,250 in rebates which cover the monthly
payments on the lease. The total rebate is combined between Hyundai and
Efficiency Maine. In order to take advantage of the offer we would need to be
approved by corporate and Efficiency Maine. Treasurer Jen Lord has already begun
the paperwork to ensure we would qualify.

Additional costs related to the vehicle would be a charging station, insurance, and
electricity.

Charging station: The Town could use something as simple as an extension cord to
a dedicated outlet to charge the vehicle. A level 1 charger is a standard 120V outlet
(standard home outlet) and will charge the vehicle fully in 8-15 hours. A level 2
charger is 240 V (similar to an electric dryer outlet) and would require equipment and
installation. Staff are estimating this cost at $2,500. There is currently a $500 rebate
offered by efficiency Maine on the first station and $250 rebate on the second
station. A level 2 charger would charge the vehicle fully in 3-10 hours.

Insurance: The Town would be responsible for insuring the electric vehicle. We
estimate this cost would be a few hundred dollars annually.

Electricity: The Town’s electricity usage would increase due to charging of vehicles.
It is anticipated that it could increase up to $500 per year per vehicle.

Currently three departments have shown interest in the vehicles, these include
Public Health for nurse visits, Wastewater for administration use, and Town Hall for
staff visits to work sites and inspection areas.

Staff are recommending the leasing of 1-3 vehicles for a 3 year period based upon
the comfort level of the Selectmen.

6 Elm Street, P.O. Box 566, Kennebunkport, Maine 04046
Tel: (207) 967-4243 Fax: (207) 967-8470



uemp3 1 {punpdo @ piepusis » - - - - ARisia A80ILY 9L 3NSDE s pe
=1 - MND $50T0 JMOTSURIRIONSER £
- e e s s » e e a ye(ndufmpny - - - 2 e & m - il R 1010 whop POPID} £ O B8 m0s — AGIRAND OBlieS
s ® % 3 a s e« e = d L T Arpisp vonmuLoULRINK WO LU VTS SO 101Ul 9L/ sLuTON MENIBTIRY 13 peade-z amy 150 peads-Z M S6L T )
¢ v 8 & s e & - - ¢ LI . S I O B A SUBPIND BUPHTA (AN SOOI MatA 100y ¥/ SIE UIEYE /TS 1092 43004} - waOY SIPITONG
e - e s - e = - BURPOPRTUUN 4 4 4 e s e e e e  1onwon wsyuia puy suotd wpoosantsy uyTEss wosts s s 100, - wiaabn NN\@N\@N OM\NM\@N B o
. - - e - - - - - (PambaIuaNd|ISqns OU] SANAINE SR 0T OH s ol ety S L 28 7 (09E) 08T e £ foes) ver INBI { (jOOIUDE LHIAY [UN) - WOOIPRRH stL S
e o e o s e s e - aimr onng end (i Kizue Ko Aipporg vaz IspuiAa-y laD OQINLIGY
s s s+ e s e e 8 - <SP QH PUZ OIS SIS HXENHES - Sl o -t . . oy wow [Py, 58011000 (U AUBOH ERISn0
e & v s s & & s SR FLPUY P AL ok seatag o e A e - I
OE—3-- I AT S « s - e 8 - & - - +/ORAITE SRA1-PLT-I MY @B gieny {415 g
. wessuoneBpr - - e - - - - & - 103 Jocu Bunsenusn NN\ OM\ mN OM\ mm\ NN Il ]
= — -7 - RIS K| USRI ESRI-A BYY_GZTOL - - = & & e = e - w14 9py3 oy L
waiths uoyeSiaeu pue . e e e PR - - tapmg 13t uay. (peuqUInDZASMUSH/AND) I8N LINSE 4N VI JOpUBAZ-® 14N DT
=l - DPNY uadISIYN0Y ol UoNNOT! e s « - - - - - 100 PHASPUIM BUYSUDS-Uy
» WTAS e 4DRK [Ty Ve * & e = = & = e - wewif 1001 Aomaprd .
Afiageutiag G . e & 2 s e e o+ @ 8. o 057 dOIg UM PAUGD AS|IUD UG- lonuo) atiud Uews - 8-
T aeR BT i » o+ e s s ® = e - S0)93{PU] FRUBYS L) Yo QLR HAYS PR = i i opp P " a4 B vy -
e e e e e . WSS el 8 4+ 4 e 4 o+ . e s sy el == | o ;
¢ - = e - - - - onianmy - Bojump ¢ s = 82 s » - - nubm a1 - Jepiiq dn-£peoH ojeo-{nd- etionny -B reipes-
n e - e - - - - - = - & & -~ = = 48 Bo) 1uoiy WEnSAS UOPEBIABU LDADSLPNOL 0D, STO- Ajds)q dn-apvap 10103~
e s v e = = a2 & -~ Buuiem w0z e s - & s a - - AL peay 1 ON —\ \w O —\ \N m —\ sempey inintod raimoey iondog sampog iojndod
L R R Qunurap uois(100 J0d5- iy » & s s s s e s ® 1Y) Buing ousSg a3
* ® ® s ® B s « = BUILITA UORMSLY IOAO » & & s & &« a & = 4B #41R19 037 191080 g Jejodls ey
B s e s s s o = vy Gurdeay sury . « ® e e e * w ® IR JOOP JOfNLN 1OITIRECR Apadiquog AvmyBiHzAND)
Dilc I - - - Uopmaq umpisepey s e+ ® s e s - - - BuppYR Apag Aud winpueig foIRWpST ATdN VeT
164 16133 93UNPIoAY-UcisfoD it = .- - e - - AP S50P P UL 4P TR0l
- s ® - a2 e e e = TV AIURDIOAY-NOTH ) DAty L - wB5ap Apoq Jwar pus oz uN SAEM 162 ! & =
L e
- - - & ® ® s s - DT ITID WPt S PP - - = & - =~ - - pnouns a|Ri swaiya i w4yt Baoearg Lo |.! eumin ST payupT uapIPa IYBIN
Gy - - - - - - 00 PEDIS YA RUINDD 5D LALIS. ! 24tioag auifiepg- ol
- - - & - - - - 1s3u0D esn) Rusg T —— = [Ty SINTHESE =y A4NoeE YNOM VYNOA VNOA VNOM
. - 1 - - - - - - SAUNBUOH (I SO AAIB8) BUNIUIR-010Y - - - . - - - - - 191U0Y TE[STY LRTSEH PUR [ROUDD LG mog
o & a2 s s+ e 4 . - o oy Mol - - - - oo onredsnt e R -
s e - 2 o o e & - SryUMOP-GIRT 0L Ui EMOBUIN 190 ~ < - o 6 a a&a « o UojsuRdENS AU RUP 24410 SRR woltht sRuem Aayeg- soown Ao _z1 BBy eawap ,H._..E soum doip_ 41 nuziau.m
s s s s e v v a w ! " « s s e e o s s« 229(95 3PN O0Q Sugbiewp vapap .»H__-_._ﬂus. § o i o Ao hoy & P —
o &4+ 4 s s e & o B % O . - - - - - issy Y - o i orpmy
- - - - - e = - - sl X M s & s s s e 71805 19AIP JOMOG - QIPNE ARARIP URMIITYIN0L 400D £~ w08, a4 Bujuse; Juty - gty updooy sum -
L aaesing Bupvar sayiea « & e e & ¥ = = . swyesg anp pagn-y DOLINY BP[S-PAIT-UH IBMOH = PIS-pUB-IL - (A, i i o4
¢ - - - - - - . - 1014 BuLSII3 PAIREY PUS FISSY 1901 PIARILIA < e - - - - - - PR swmosy mindog sumps4 Jojndod EoimDe4 IDmdod faImped Jopdog samped mmded
e a2 s e e e e« = - vires oy poveey - e e - - - - - o 1101 0G5 3vS s Aageded By 1593 00
- N - . . - - - - QoA 1y peddesmm-iaqiee] - . . - - - - - 1oI3eieE AP BM-A-NS
¢+ s @ s e & & = - Waum Bupnars prcdusm-apen L T T S UOISIRIBIE USIAD ] JS93 Peadses
€ s+ - s s e e - - sonp samod £ e - - I e e .
b . - - - - - - -J:::? YO0 G 1203 J0AUP DRIBNIAT AT - . . - - _ _ _ i
« s 8 - - - - - - 1
R PuuD3 simyeaduse) ofiewoiy - - - & = & - - - W09 J9PUIKS-¥ 100 QML TS 1 S8R 541
s - - s - - - - - Augdsy dn-smoei ojod S - = = - e e e ouBUspUH D omraY iy 1T AZER I payu s Snid 13§ 13as s

s o vneeoi Bl— T gy ey 319913 YNOM 919913 YNOM YNOM YNOX YNOX
ONENEEERER awsenviow renon N 1 I I 1D (D D 2 211993 VIO 7 YNON



Technology this amazing borders on magic.

._.rn_.__a:__f thers's no trick to n:_nﬁ_.ﬁ u__ of the Innovations avallable with Hyundai's Blua Link™ Connected Car System. Using the
yHy! i app on your pl - ot your Amazen Echo® or Google Home™ devica®- you can remotely untack
your Kana's doars, start the engine .:n activate the climate controls while you're getting ready to leave.

Blus LInk's array of Connattad Care services offer security on the road - and convenience on the ga, You zan receiva Monthly Vehicle
Health Reports and reminders for service chack-ups, control your Kona Electric's charging remately, and much mare. With Blue
Link's Guidance package, you can tap POI Search on your smartphone to find a new restaurant or paint of intarast, then send
driving directions to the Ultimate model’s navigation system.*

Ot course, Blue Link is just one of tha ways Hyundai makes ilfe easier, Apple CarPlay® and Android Auto™ syne your
with Kona's large color tauchscreen display for easy accesa to your contact lists, texts, calls, maps and navigation, music library
and more - gnsurlng the smarts of your smartphone travel with you wherever yau go, Wireless device charging is also avallabte -
like thase dual frant USB charging ports, yau'll wander how you ever got along withaut k2

KONA UNtimete in Thunder Gray

Remote Charge Access (Kna Electic)

Bruatink

Automatic Emergancy
Assistance
Blus Link Connected Care affers

and rereive Monthly Vehicle
Health Reports.or malntenance:
remindars by email.

Vehicle Charging
Dashhoard
Find eharging statlons, control

Umes st chesper off-peak hours,

Sorvica Link

Convaniently schedule your
Kona for sarvica fram the driver
sast orthrough your MyRyunda)
smaciphona spp.

CarFinder
Our Car Finder smmartphare app

lats back ba your vahicle.

Remota Controls
r smartphone, home

KONA KONA KONA Electric KONA Electric
Exterior Colors Interior Colors Exterior Colors Interior Colors

Whits ol ﬁmc

Coramic Blue

Ultra Black

=l sk Ut

SE/SEL/SEL Plus/Night Eqitlan Bk chaih

Thundur Gray

Chalk White

Sonlc Sitver

Lmtwsi i 1Abaase Fobnts o sieny Loatien

Qray Laathver

KONAElectric
SEL Contrasting Roof Calars.

KONA SEL Contrasting Roci Colors
Avaliable wilh any waterior color

Sonic Sliver

Limited 7 Witimate

8" alloy wiveel




WY weeaysiH §= tonuop eeun weurs (ICEHE

- &

Buuser .a.-_ﬂ -U.e ey Bugdoeyoumy \ B, Supusepuopumy 1erpg 8

yto1Bojouysa) Ayojes asuagirews

i) R pewg srvy Bupdesy suwy

“AYMEIS {RUO[IDEIXD YIIM AGLU AIBAG 89F NOA ST{IY 3}
‘s1ad)m Bujsuos-ules pue SICLNW BPIS PRIEIY 3.me3) sigeleaz yum Suoly ‘uopsod
Buneas yBiy s,euay €1 puBIWIAES J0 BSUAS JINDA BullopuISY *a3e(d 1sity oYl U] B|qNO
10 129|2 J8218 NOA djay 03 YBNoua BjquIIL €3] SUSALL YIIYM Al
sajpuRy uoy “WEramit Bl osje s (EuaNS-YBIY pIouURAPE 85NE3SQ PUY (ap) Joink
2 § J0 JudAe Y U} LIqeD JaBuassed ay) yo
Pe2URAPR YuM pasNjul aIRIaNAE Apogiun

AwiBeiu) ay) 33030.d 2d) % tNBUoLS-

¥II9PRW BUJ|-8)-4o-do) 4BYL U ueide ur Se J8)y0 Luop sinadwan
Auew sinea) e - uopeleq uey
R TR AL RV Y ISIITY SIUEPIOAY-UBS{|[0) PIeMIC] PIOAR 0} Alessadaul )i FayRIg pue ‘ajajyaa paddols Jo Guimos @ Bulyasordde uaym noA
- SWIAM ysissy 1 j0D plemioy ; Bupesls BRgns Yim pusy ¢ pus|
Bujdasy aue pue ‘BuyieuB|s INoY1IM BUE| JNOA JO APISING JUA [paYIANAP
S UoRUARRU] JC BNBIYY JAALP §) Ui eNE|A/21QIPNE ue Bujnss| pue swened Swaup
1noA Bupzijeue qo(yd-a3 feyBIp ¢ a))| ©198 BUILIEM UD[IUSIY JaALK) isejdiexs me)

“|OpOL AJOAR IO PIEPUR)S AJR SBINIER) ASUASLIBWG

1y do any 104

ueiod 1oy HHUEB) pUR I AIRq
) Aioges p 10 uns v

8,QU0Y J0 AURW 'sjanal Wiy 1ayby
15216) BY1 BAISTEI TAMS JOLIO 150W
INoA JoNuDW 1epuniH pajjes

*9]6uD A19Ad WOl A1840s




Driving electric has never been easier.

Kana Electric delivers instant tarque for quick acceleration - with zare tallpipe emissions.  Your Kona Electric even handles same of the recharging for you while driving - steering
And no more pit stops at the gas pump. Using tha charge port conveniently integrated in  wheel paddies let yau control four lavels of regenerative braking.

the grille area, you can recharge In lass than an hour at charging stations — 2 100 kW DC

Fast Charger pravides 80% of the charga in approximately 54 minutes. With a 50 kW DC  Steering wheel controls slso lat you activate Kona Electric's Utility Mode when you want to
Fast Charger, an 80% charge takes around 75 mintutes. camp out Bnd use the climate and audio systems wi is stopped. The clever
packaging of battery components within Kona Elec! ves loads of room far
With the Hyundal Bius Link® app downloaded to your smartphane, yau can schedule atime  happy campers and thalr belangings, too. Welcame to lifa on easy street.

1o recharge dufing off-peak hours when electric rates are lower!

KONA Electric Uitimatsin Pebbis Blus/Geay Leather

KONA Electric Ultimate In Ceramic Bluo



23UNAINY BUPHTY Y244 101UOW MR IS

4As(Q dn-3pRoH Jol-INd

VEBUIUT OF UM posueS 5|
1a8{qo us J) BulIEM BITPNY
SrIRAR; - BUIITM #2UTISHa Buped

ydus g Japun peeds
sdamy Bupyeig apewInny
1oRUOD wyerg yuMOg
«$EUeT I8y £
e Jeos 1ansa

M~

4L OZ JAPUN MY BWR-)INd uods | euson
0 AMY 120105 8pop anpq
3004
AR
¥losyuo) dpaaBuyf euoy

)

“saaeds Gupied 1y6 4o N0 uied a4} SeYE) Yoyl BIUEPING Bupped YiIM JoHUDKY
MBJA 182Y B S2injRA) asje [Apoll BUDY AJeA3 *Aeds|p dn-dod
uoliauttajll ueBGIAGY puR BUIALIP (8114 $AUIR) AR|dS|G UN-SPESH JO103-|FY € UM ‘pasues
J1} JaMO(5 UayM A|[eonewning paeds JNOA SISNIPE [01IUOD 85INID 1IRIMS "WIeaIp B
Buiaup 1p-Buny ajews Jey) seiBojouysal yim peddinbe air TjapOW SIRWILA BUOY

“gutou] daays e uMop EUT) INDA Bujses §o ysey
Axapy o4y o) Aplqeys sBUMg ‘oquag eyelg [IYUMOQ ‘einies) Jeyiouy ‘BuddRW YIYS PUB
uoiingpnsip enbial Y3 JBIR ‘LodS pue [BuIoN ‘Sapow BulAup oMl uanng e Jo ysnd ayy
1e s3aUeAIsUOdsa) UleIIeMEd [[RIBAC PUR Yjosy Buiams iy azi nak
S18] 421y ‘1I0(9S OPO Ba( TRININE, BUCH AJeAd “Bujjpury BIquilu pue Bsuadses Buueays
0512010 aaalyae sdjpY UDISUISNS SRS HUII-IINUW € 'OALIG [SUAL 1Y YHM [9POW AJaas Ul

“jteyeq noA uo 1aModBsIoY SZ| PI9IM LOSSUISURI) UaN)] leng poads-2 pue suibua 1o°|
pabiieyooqum € ‘UoNIp3 JBIN PUR 21BN ‘P BLOY UG "LOJSSILISURL LIINOHLIHS
paeds-g & s paiEd sujbus SBAD UOSUYIY 10° AIP ngejo
Bsuodsel [nusmod ‘i1001us ay) [084 [ NOA *SNifd T3S 10 73S *IS BUDY BALP-159) NOA IPYISLAL

"uo ) Buug ¢MBIABI 82UDULIOId

ovan

v

< nit gr- e

popeyng;

ooumin YNON




Welcome to the fun zone. 8

Maybe the most surprising thing people are dlscovering about Kona and Kona Electric —
is how much room thete Is for passengers, cargo or — thanks to 60740 split-folding rear
seats - corbinatians of both.

Kana's varsetlla and spacious interior features 19.2 cublc faat of cargo space when
the resr sasts are up. A dual-level cargo floor helps you arganize things, whi
door openings make getting paople inside a snap. Settts into your high seat position,

and you'll enjoy the luxury af an available 8-way power driver seat with power lumbar SifusxXM & W Infinity®

sdjustment and contrals placad precisely whera your fingertips expect them to ba. Satsiiits Radlo Pramium Audio

Tilt up or slide open ths avallable pawer sunroof to let the sun and fun fill your spaca in

concert with the available Infinity* Premium Audio syatem. You'll hear sparkling sound,

thanks ta Clari-Fi™ Music Restoration Technology that restores qualities lost when N & hevin S
uslc o

streaming compressed music filas. ) Arplocurbiay

Kona Ultimate and Kana Electric Ultimate featura high-resolution tauchscreens that
include a navigation system with split-screen display, junction view lana guidanca and
subscription-fran real-tima traffic updates thraugh HD Radlo™ Let the goad times roll.

-

Duat-level cargo floor Ultimate 10.257

KONA Ultimate In Black Leathar



‘SEDE P Bent 'ViDE ‘102 "SI 5102 'WAZ CIOK 04 103 CLOE W0 w4

“PRJAADS NOA |06 5,2UDH ZANS IPADSSDLD (RIS Y29I-UBIY PUR JUR|PHR-(eN} USRS
-adeds ‘pajhis Aanbiun e 1o BupjooT JAUBWIWOD JNOA 12 tAemye &) Buo)y ‘dde ajgow
WU anjg pUnAY Bt Yum JeipeBol uresos Bupeol a1 Jojo2 aBie ay) va sdew
an01 ¥28US Nk 3a] 01Ny PIOIPUY PUE (AR|JIeD) aiddy ZnoA exu) B6URI JEUL IlM JeYM WG]} V 'S2INIUBAPY JNOA JO ||@ Jo} P21 Aive)aed pue paddinbe Ajng ase 30913

RU0Y pue 2UCY 's8]BOIOULIS) A19}eS PRIUTARY YIM Payed pue Awoo: ‘ejnesien

SSANg 1RdIgNS
Jwep ey joingiseg
auay |[#puniy 0202

g gnag
desseyyjo ing vees
24n20(3 RuCH [EPUNAY 0302

MR UL SRk Lo
JojAyeAopavuiopms uf
Ly PO 10 1epunl

MOdY PHOM ¥ SWON 'SR
RN N
Q38 fuo) MPUNAH 0207

Aoy 'aimusape A19As uf BINIUSA
4o Auajd s,iay) sainsus abieys |ny e uo abues ajiw-gsz It ~ JuLdI00] UOQIeD [(EWS *SUQpIqLIE JoBiB] ING ‘SUDISUBWI|P JOLIBIXD J0RTUDD YIIM SANS YshiAis
® Buiaea) sjtym abi1e| an(| noA s8] ‘ANS dUNaEjo-)|e 185 InG ‘o11308}] eucy ARuep)iuod  AIpRBEN Jo Jled v oiRD NOA ueym Fusddey 1eum sjeyL ‘Aem o Buo|e SpuEME ([IM
Buraaus NoA dasy 03 SPE) palaras-Mous 1o AJadd)js Jof Uoaes POppPR jo diay ay) 8983 Aydon ¢ Byl puy -9)doad 4o 30 @ Bulspdins 61e 3M30(3 GUOY PUB BUTY [RpURAH




2021 Hyundai




efiiciency)  Efficiency Maine
@ MAINE esidential Incentives

Air Sealirig and Energy As

Clothes Wgsbfers - $50 | $50 | %f: |
Electric Vehicles $2,500 - $5,500 $1,000 -$ 2,000 of ,{1
Geothermal Systems | $3000 | o0 | v
Heat Pump Water Heaters - ] ;(_)O%_of Installed Cost $750 - v _ ! -
HeatPumps . | s om0 | ¢ |
| Insulation $6,000 $3,000 '
l . RPN S e e T O
Natural G-as “Combi” Boilers $300 | $300 -

Natural-Gas On:Demand Water Heaters. |- .- :/$300,. -

Pellet Boiler Systems $6,000
%25

Rqot_i')“:Air?Pur'ifi_i;r

! Instant discount applied by participating distributor, rétailer, or dealership. ? Rebate amounts and loan eligibility vary according to natural gas utility. )
- Eligibility requirements apply. Program and incentives subject to change or termination. § Lk
FINANCING LS i

Efficiency Maine offers home energy loans to help pay for energy upgrades. Maine homeowners can borrow up to
$15,000 over 10 years with no fees and interest rates as low as 4.99% APR. Electric vehicles are not eligible.

NON-EFFICIENCY MAINE INCENTIVES
Natural gas utilities: Natural gas customers may be eligible for additional rebates from their utility. Contact your
natural gas provider for more information.

Federal Electric Vehicle Tax Credits: Up to $7,500 on qualified all-electric and plug-in hybrid electric vehicles. For
more information, visit www.fueleconomy.gov.

Federal Electric Vehicle Charging Equipment Tax Credits: Up to 30% of eligible costs for qualified residential and
commercial fueling equipment (expires 12/31/2021). For more information, visit www.irs.gov.

Federal Renewable Energy Tax Credits: Up to 26% of the cost of eligible solar and geothermal technologies (expires
*/31/2021). For more information, visit www.dsireusa.org.

T T T 2 . Ve e a et o S e s s

Visit efficiencymaine.com for details or call 866-376-2463 fev 172572021 |




efficiency Commercial &
Industrial Incentives

Battery Electric Vehicles $2,000
Plug-In Hybrid Electric Vehicles $1,000

Electric Vehicle

High-Performance Heat Pump Systems $1,250
Packaged Terminal Heat Pumps $480 |

Heating and Cooling : = i V2 ,
Retrofit Heat Pump for Small Businesses $4,800 '
Variable Refrigerant Flow Systems $6.00 per sq. ft. '

1 |nstant discount applied by participating distributor, retailer, or dealership. * Work with an Efficiency Maine Qualified Partner to access cash incentives for these
energy efficient solutions. ? Electric vehicle instant discounts are applied at participating car dealers; models from manufacturers without a dealer in Maine are eligible

for a mail-in rebate {ETERcEd ek 3 ery i BEVEECTEBAN / PHEVs: $5.000) and select non-profits (BEVs: $7,500
/ PHEVs: $2,000S8[8FtMaine non-profits governm @;Jepa}t‘egg?lsq;gg@i@%ﬁlvm.%eﬁéﬁﬁfﬂﬁft’ﬁﬁﬁ@?
o o g Fo PO - 2 T .

Efﬁciency Maine GET STARTED:

@uALIFEEB Work with an Efficiency Maine Qualified Partner to install

?ARTHERS | energy efficient solutions. Find a Qualified Partner working
near you at efficiencymaine.com.

Find more information on how to get started at efficiencymaine.com.

DON'T SEE YOUR SOLUTION LISTED ABOVE? EXPLORE OUR CUSTOM PROGRAM.
The Commercial & Industrial Custom Program targets cost-effective, site-specific energy efficiency projects that
require tailored engineering analyses. Maine businesses, institutions, nonprofits, and governments can apply for
financial incentives to offset the cost of electrical efficiency, distributed generation, or thermal efficiency projects.
Awards range from a minimum of $10,000 to a maximum of $1 million per customer per year, or up to 50% of
the total project cost. Customers may also be eligible for free scoping audits and technical assistance incentives.

T = et = ey sl S = RN

R - s T ey e

= i e S T —_=" == =i

Visit efficiencymaine.com for details or call 866-376 -2463 Rev 1/25/2021



